
  
 

INDIAN WELLS COUNTRY CLUB COMMUNITY 
FIRE ACCESS MAINTENANCE DISTRICT (FAMD) NO. 1 

 
 

 

 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

January 11, 2024 

10:00 A.M.  

 

 

 
This Meeting will be held In-Person at  

The City of Indian Wells City Council Chambers  

44950 El Dorado Drive Indian Wells, CA 
 



 

 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS  2024 

 

Director         Term Ends  
   
Name: Kurt Yeager (Chairperson)        February 28, 2025 
Phone: (949) 632-6157 
Email: ekurty01@gmail.com 
                                                                                                     
Name: Margaret “Marge” Barry (Vice Chair)      February 28, 2026 
Phone: (760) 772-0404 or (760) 219-3100 cell  
Email: iwmarge@gmail.com 

 
Name: Charlie Jones (Secretary)       February 28, 2025 
Phone: (760) 200-0491  
Email: COJ1939@gmail.com  
 
Name: Tony Trocino (Director)        February 28, 2026 
Phone: (760) 610-1751  
Email: trotony7@dc.rr.com  
 
Name: Steve Nozet (Director)         February 28, 2025 
Phone: (925) 698-4632 
Email: nozetsteve@gmail.com 
 
Name: Dennis Coker (IWCC Rep)       Appointed (No Term) 
Phone: (760) 345-2561 
Email: Dennis.Coker@clubcorp.com 

mailto:iwmarge@gmail.com
https://www.google.com/search?q=indian+wells+contry+club&rlz=1C1GCEB_enUS931US931&oq=indian+wells+contry+club&aqs=chrome..69i57j46i13i175i199j0i13i457j0i13l2j46i13i175i199j0i13.4679j0j4&sourceid=chrome&ie=UTF-8




Page 1 of 2 
 

 

FIRE ACCESS MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1 
INDIAN WELLS COUNTRY CLUB COMMUNITY  

 

Board of Directors Meeting Agenda 
 

January 11, at 10:00 A.M. 
Board will Meet in the City Council Chamber of the  

City of Indian Wells at 44950 El Dorado Indian Wells CA 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER OF THE FAMD, ROLL CALL 

Chairman - Kurt Yeager 

Vice Chairman – Margaret “Marge” Barry  

Secretary – Charlie Jones 

Director - Tony Trocino 

Director – Steve Nozet 

IWCC Representative – Dennis Coker 

 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 
3. APPROVAL of the FINAL AGENDA 

January 11, 2024          Page(s) 4-5  

     
4. PUBLIC COMMENTS  

All persons wishing to address the FAMD Board will be called on during this section of the meeting by the Chairman.  At the appropriate time, please 

come forward to the podium and state your name for the record. Speakers are limited to three minutes. Parties are encouraged to submit their 

comments in writing with any attachments or exhibits they wish for the FAMD Board to review, preferably 24 hours prior to the meeting. Speakers can 

then use their three-minutes to summarize the key points of their comments. Please note that you may address the FAMD Board on an agenda item at 

the time it is discussed, but only after being recognized by the Chairman. 

Under the Brown Act, the FAMD Board should not take action on or discuss matters raised during the public comment portion of the agenda which 

are not listed on the agenda. FAMD Board Members may refer such matters to staff for information or to be placed on a subsequent agenda for 

consideration. Notwithstanding the foregoing, FAMD Board Members and staff may briefly respond to statements made or questions posed during 

public comment, if such responses do not constitute any deliberation.  

 

5. CLOSED SESSION 

a. Conference with Legal Counsel Regarding Anticipated-Litigation-Initiation of Litigation 

Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(4). One (1) or More Cases. Potential Case. 
 

6. CONSENT CALENDAR  
All matters listed on the Consent Calendar are routine and will be enacted by one vote. There will be no separate 

discussion of these items unless members of the FAMD Board or audience request that specific items be removed from 

the Consent Calendar for separate discussion and action. Financial matters will be indicated as budgeted or non-

budgeted below. 

 

a. Minutes; December 14, 2023        Page(s) 6-7  

b. Financials; December 2023        Page(s) 8 

    

7. SECURITY REPORT 

a. December 2023 Security Report       Page(s) 9-12 

    



Page 2 of 2 
 

  

 

 

8. OLD BUSINESS 

a. Electrical Reimbursement Agreement with Sandpiper Cove #3 &                                        

Manitou Springs HOA for Bridge Lighting     Page(s) Verbal 

b. Report on Street Safety Suggestions      Page(s) 13-17   

                        

9. NEW BUSINESS      

a. Financial Overview and Ballot Measure Consideration   Page(s) 18-22 

b. Discussion on whether to proceed with Priority 4 Street Rehabilitation Page(s) 23-43  

c. Discussion on whether to proceed with a Manitou Guard House Remodel Page(s) 44   

 

10. FAMD DISTRICT MANAGERS REPORT 

a. Priority Three Update 

b. RFP for Drainage Analysis 

c. RFP for 5-Year Pavement Management Plan 

 

11. BOARD MEMBERS COMMENTS 

 

12. ANNOUNCEMENTS 

Next Meeting February 8, 2024 

 

13. ADJOURNMENT 

 

 

 

 

 

INDIAN WELLS COUNTRY CLUB COMMUNITY  

FIRE ACCESS MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS OPEN MEETING 

 
IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT, IF YOU NEED SPECIAL 

ASSISTANCE TO PARTICIPATE IN THIS MEETING, PLEASE CONTACT THE SENIOR BUILDING 

INSPECTOR OR THE RISK MANAGER AT (760) 346-2489.  A 48-HOUR NOTIFICATION PRIOR TO THE 

MEETING WILL ENABLE THE CITY TO MAKE REASONABLE ARRANGEMENTS TO ENSURE 

ACCESSIBILITY TO THIS MEETING (128 CFR 35.102.35.104 ADA TITLE III). 

 

AFFIDAVIT OF POSTING 

 

I, Angelica Avila, certify that on January 8, 2024, I caused to be posted a notice of a FAMD #1 Board 

Meeting to be held on Thursday January 11, 2024, at 10:00 A.M., in person in the  

City Council Chamber’s.   

 

 

___________________________________ 



 

1 

 

 
 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
 

MINUTES       

December 14, 2023 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

Chairman Kurt Yeager called meeting to order at 9:30 A.M.  

 

ROLL CALL 

PRESENT:  Chairman - Kurt Yeager 

Secretary – Charlie Jones 

Director - Tony Trocino 

IWCC Representative – Dennis Coker 

   

ABSENT: Vice Chairman – Margaret “Marge” Barry  

Director – Open 

 

 

ALSO, PRESENT: District Manager (DM) Scott Matas (Desert Resort Management/ Associa),                  

Ken Seumalo (City of Indian Wells, Public Works Director), 

Jill Tremblay (Best, Best & Krieger, City Attorney),  

Paul Stotesbury (Allied Universal, (DOS) Director of Security), 

Jennifer Aguilar (City of Indian Wells, Administrative Assistant) 

 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 

3. APPROVAL OF THE FINAL AGENDA 

A motion was made by Director Tony Trocino and a 2nd by Director Charlie Jones to approve the 

agenda for the December 14, 2023, FAMD board meeting. Motion carried 4/0. 

 

4. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

Comment made to support better street stripping and flashing sign placement.   

 

5. CLOSED SESSION 

a. Conference with Legal Counsel Regarding Anticipated-Litigation-Initiation of Litigation 

Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(4). One (1) or More Cases. Potential Case. 

See Closed Session Notes in File – Restricted Information 

  

6. CONSENT CALENDAR 

a. Minutes; November 9, 2023 

b. Financials; November 2023 

 



 

2 

 

A motion was made by Director Charlie Jones and a 2nd by Director Tony Trocino to approve the 

Consent Calendar. Motion carried 4/0. 

 

7. SECURITY REPORT 

a. November 2023 Security Report 

Director of Security Paul Stotesbury updated the Board of Directors on the past month’s security 

report.   

 

8. OLD BUSINESS 
a. Electrical Reimbursement Agreement with Sandpiper Cove #3 & Manitou Springs HOA for Bridge 

Lighting 

Tabled 

 

b. Open Board Seat Subcommittee Recommendation for Appointment  

The Board of Directors reviewed a recommendation by the subcommittee to appoint Steve Nozet 

to the open board seat. 

 

A motion was made by Chairman Kurt Yeager and a 2nd by Director Dennis Coker to appoint Steve 

Nozet to the open board seat and to serve the remainder of the term that will end in 2025.  Motion 

carried 4/0.    

 
9. NEW BUSINESS 

a. On Call Drain Services 

The Board of Directors were given an update by the District Manager that on call services for 

maintenance are a part of the contract with AOC and will continue for storm issues.   

 

b. Flashing Stop Signs 

The Board of Directors reviewed the proposal for flashing street signs.  Direction was given to 

the District Manager to bring back a report showing the intersection that would be in most need 

of signs, better street labeling and traffic calming devises.   

 

10. DISTRICT MANAGER REPORT 

The District Manager reported and answered questions regarding on the progress on the Priority 3 road 

rehabilitation project, RFP for the street drainage and a future financial review.   

 

11. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 

Board members wished everyone Happy Holidays. 

 

12. ANNOUCEMENTS 

The next regularly scheduled meeting of the Fire Access Maintenance District Board of Directors will 

be held at 10:00 A.M., on January 11, 2024, in person at the City of Indian Wells council chambers.  

 

13. ADJOURNMENT 

There being no more business the meeting was adjourned by Chair Kurt Yeager at 10:33 A.M.  

 

Respectfully Submitted, Scott Matas, District Manager 

 
Attested to:  _______________________________ Date: _______________ 

Charlie Jones, FAMD Secretary 



In
di

an
 W

el
ls

, C
A

YE
A

R
-T

O
-D

A
TE

 B
U

D
G

ET
 R

EP
O

R
T

R
e
p
o
r
t
 
g
e
n
e
r
a
t
e
d
:
 
1
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
1
1
:
1
5

U
s
e
r
:

d
a
m
e
z
c
u
a

P
r
o
g
r
a
m
 
I
D
:

g
l
y
t
d
b
u
d

P
a
g
e

1

N
O

V 
20

23

 
 
F
O
R
 
2
0
2
4
 
0
5

A
C
C
O
U
N
T
S
 
F
O
R
:

O
R
I
G
I
N
A
L
 
 
 
 
R
E
V
I
S
E
D

A
V
A
I
L
A
B
L
E
 
 
 
 
P
C
T

2
0
9

F
.
A
.
M
.
D
.
 
#
1

A
P
P
R
O
P

B
U
D
G
E
T

Y
T
D
 
A
C
T
U
A
L

M
T
D
 
A
C
T
U
A
L
 
 
 
E
N
C
U
M
B
R
A
N
C
E
S

B
U
D
G
E
T
 
 
 
 
U
S
E
/
C
O
L

2
0
9
0
0
0
0
 
F
.
A
.
M
.
D
.
 
#
1

2
0
9
0
0
0
0
 
4
1
1
1
0
0
 
 
C
Y
S
e
c
P
r
p
T
x

-
3
2
5
,
0
0
0

-
3
2
5
,
0
0
0

-
3
,
2
1
3
.
1
4

.
0
0

.
0
0
 
 
 
 
-
3
2
1
,
7
8
6
.
8
6
 
 
 
 
1
.
0
%

2
0
9
0
0
0
0
 
4
1
1
2
0
0
 
 
C
Y
U
n
s
P
r
p
T
x

-
8
,
1
7
0

-
8
,
1
7
0

-
9
,
4
5
1
.
7
2

.
0
0

.
0
0

1
,
2
8
1
.
7
2
 
 
1
1
5
.
7
%

2
0
9
0
0
0
0
 
4
1
1
3
0
0
 
 
P
Y
P
r
p
T
x

-
2
,
0
5
0

-
2
,
0
5
0

-
3
0
.
1
1

.
0
0

.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
-
2
,
0
1
9
.
8
9
 
 
 
 
1
.
5
%

2
0
9
0
0
0
0
 
4
1
1
4
0
0
 
 
R
o
l
l
P
r
p
T
x

-
1
,
8
5
0

-
1
,
8
5
0

.
0
0

.
0
0

.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
-
1
,
8
5
0
.
0
0

.
0
%

2
0
9
0
0
0
0
 
4
2
1
1
0
0
 
 
F
i
r
e
 
A
c
c
e
s

-
1
,
1
9
4
,
0
0
0
 
 
-
1
,
1
9
4
,
0
0
0

-
1
1
,
5
3
3
.
0
3

.
0
0

.
0
0
 
 
-
1
,
1
8
2
,
4
6
6
.
9
7
 
 
 
 
1
.
0
%

2
0
9
0
0
0
0
 
4
3
1
1
0
0
 
 
C
o
n
s
t
 
P
m
t

-
1
,
0
8
0

-
1
,
0
8
0

.
0
0

.
0
0

.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
-
1
,
0
8
0
.
0
0

.
0
%

2
0
9
0
0
0
0
 
4
5
1
1
0
0
 
 
I
n
v
s
t
 
E
a
r
n

-
4
8
,
0
0
0

-
4
8
,
0
0
0

.
0
0

.
0
0

.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
-
4
8
,
0
0
0
.
0
0

.
0
%

2
0
9
0
0
0
0
 
4
6
1
5
0
0
 
 
P
r
o
p
T
x
R
e
l
f

-
1
,
8
3
0

-
1
,
8
3
0

.
0
0

.
0
0

.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
-
1
,
8
3
0
.
0
0

.
0
%

2
0
9
0
0
0
0
 
4
6
5
1
0
0
 
 
G
r
 
&
 
R
e
i
m
b

0
0

-
1
5
,
8
0
4
.
0
0

-
1
5
,
8
0
4
.
0
0

.
0
0

1
5
,
8
0
4
.
0
0
 
 
1
0
0
.
0
%

2
0
9
0
0
0
0
 
4
8
6
3
0
0
 
 
M
i
s
c
 
R
e
v

-
3
,
4
5
0

-
3
,
4
5
0

-
9
6
0
.
0
0

-
4
8
0
.
0
0

.
0
0

-
2
,
4
9
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
2
7
.
8
%

T
O
T
A
L
 
F
.
A
.
M
.
D
.
 
#
1

-
1
,
5
8
5
,
4
3
0
 
 
-
1
,
5
8
5
,
4
3
0

-
4
0
,
9
9
2
.
0
0

-
1
6
,
2
8
4
.
0
0

.
0
0
 
 
-
1
,
5
4
4
,
4
3
8
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
2
.
6
%

2
0
9
8
6
0
1
 
F
.
A
.
M
.
D
.
 
P
r
o
g
r
a
m

2
0
9
8
6
0
1
 
5
3
1
0
0
0
 
 
P
r
o
f
 
S
v
c
s

1
6
8
,
7
5
0

1
6
8
,
7
5
0

3
4
,
4
3
2
.
0
1

2
1
4
.
1
1

9
8
,
0
1
2
.
3
6

3
6
,
3
0
5
.
6
3
 
 
 
7
8
.
5
%

2
0
9
8
6
0
1
 
5
3
3
0
0
0
 
 
C
o
n
t
r
 
S
v
c
s

9
9
6
,
7
5
0
 
 
 
1
,
0
9
6
,
3
7
1

3
4
6
,
7
0
9
.
7
8

7
8
,
8
9
5
.
2
9

7
3
1
,
6
2
8
.
0
1

1
8
,
0
3
3
.
2
1
 
 
 
9
8
.
4
%

2
0
9
8
6
0
1
 
5
4
2
0
0
0
 
 
U
t
i
l
i
t
i
e
s

3
2
,
9
5
0

3
2
,
9
5
0

1
3
,
0
5
6
.
3
5

3
,
1
1
5
.
8
8

1
5
,
6
9
3
.
7
1

4
,
1
9
9
.
9
4
 
 
 
8
7
.
3
%

2
0
9
8
6
0
1
 
5
4
4
0
0
0
 
 
B
l
d
g
&
G
r
M
n
t

1
3
7
,
6
5
0

1
3
7
,
6
5
0

2
1
,
4
5
9
.
0
8

8
,
1
5
6
.
0
8

7
2
,
4
8
6
.
4
8

4
3
,
7
0
4
.
4
4
 
 
 
6
8
.
2
%

2
0
9
8
6
0
1
 
5
4
5
0
0
0
 
 
I
n
f
r
a
s
t
r
u
c

1
3
0
,
0
0
0

1
2
2
,
4
0
0

.
0
0

.
0
0

.
0
0

1
2
2
,
4
0
0
.
0
0

.
0
%

2
0
9
8
6
0
1
 
5
5
2
0
0
0
 
 
C
o
m
m
u
n
i
c
a
t

1
8
,
7
5
0

2
6
,
2
5
0

5
,
9
4
5
.
4
7

5
4
0
.
9
2

1
4
,
0
5
8
.
1
9

6
,
2
4
6
.
3
4
 
 
 
7
6
.
2
%

2
0
9
8
6
0
1
 
5
6
1
0
0
0
 
 
O
f
f
i
c
e
 
E
x
p

9
,
5
0
0

9
,
5
0
0

5
1
3
.
3
5

.
0
0

8
,
4
8
6
.
6
5

5
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
9
4
.
7
%

2
0
9
8
6
0
1
 
5
6
3
0
0
0
 
 
O
p
r
 
M
a
t
r
l
s

1
,
5
0
0

1
,
6
0
0

6
8
2
.
5
0

1
3
6
.
5
0

9
1
7
.
5
0

.
0
0
 
 
1
0
0
.
0
%

2
0
9
8
6
0
1
 
5
6
5
0
0
0
 
 
M
i
n
o
r
E
q
u
i
p

2
,
5
0
0

2
,
5
0
0

.
0
0

.
0
0

.
0
0

2
,
5
0
0
.
0
0

.
0
%

2
0
9
8
6
0
1
 
5
9
1
6
0
0
 
 
I
n
d
r
c
t
C
o
s
t

1
5
,
0
0
0

1
5
,
0
0
0

.
0
0

.
0
0

.
0
0

1
5
,
0
0
0
.
0
0

.
0
%

T
O
T
A
L
 
F
.
A
.
M
.
D
.
 
P
r
o
g
r
a
m

1
,
5
1
3
,
3
5
0
 
 
 
1
,
6
1
2
,
9
7
1

4
2
2
,
7
9
8
.
5
4

9
1
,
0
5
8
.
7
8

9
4
1
,
2
8
2
.
9
0

2
4
8
,
8
8
9
.
5
6
 
 
 
8
4
.
6
%

2
0
9
9
9
2
9
 
F
A
M
D
 
C
a
p
i
t
a
l

2
0
9
9
9
2
9
 
6
7
3
1
0
0
 
 
C
o
n
s
t
C
o
n
t
r

0
7
7
4
,
2
4
1

2
3
,
3
0
1
.
0
0

2
3
,
3
0
1
.
0
0

.
0
0

7
5
0
,
9
4
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
3
.
0
%

T
O
T
A
L
 
F
A
M
D
 
C
a
p
i
t
a
l

0
7
7
4
,
2
4
1

2
3
,
3
0
1
.
0
0

2
3
,
3
0
1
.
0
0

.
0
0

7
5
0
,
9
4
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
3
.
0
%

T
O
T
A
L
 
F
.
A
.
M
.
D
.
 
#
1

-
7
2
,
0
8
0

8
0
1
,
7
8
2

4
0
5
,
1
0
7
.
5
4

9
8
,
0
7
5
.
7
8

9
4
1
,
2
8
2
.
9
0
 
 
 
 
-
5
4
4
,
6
0
8
.
4
4
 
 
1
6
7
.
9
%

T
O
T
A
L
 
R
E
V
E
N
U
E
S
 
 
 
-
1
,
5
8
5
,
4
3
0
 
 
-
1
,
5
8
5
,
4
3
0

-
4
0
,
9
9
2
.
0
0

-
1
6
,
2
8
4
.
0
0

.
0
0
 
 
-
1
,
5
4
4
,
4
3
8
.
0
0

T
O
T
A
L
 
E
X
P
E
N
S
E
S
 
 
 
 
1
,
5
1
3
,
3
5
0
 
 
 
2
,
3
8
7
,
2
1
2

4
4
6
,
0
9
9
.
5
4

1
1
4
,
3
5
9
.
7
8

9
4
1
,
2
8
2
.
9
0

9
9
9
,
8
2
9
.
5
6

P
R
I
O
R
 
F
U
N
D
 
B
A
L
A
N
C
E
 
6
/
3
0
/
2
0
2
3
:

1
,
6
9
1
,
9
8
1
.
2
8

C
H
A
N
G
E
 
I
N
 
F
U
N
D
 
B
A
L
 
-
 
N
E
T
 
O
F
 
R
E
V
E
N
U
E
S
/
E
X
P
E
N
S
E
S
:

-
4
0
5
,
1
0
7
.
5
4
 

1
,
2
8
6
,
8
7
3
.
7
4

E
N
D
I
N
G
 
F
U
N
D
 
B
A
L
A
L
A
N
C
E
 
1
1
/
3
0
/
2
0
2
3
:

https://munisapp.indianwells.com/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=u5nE5%2B4FTK6dmcDb7nEiWWfWXLIHJtWERbFkWLVf3FxcU%2Bxs3r%2FibsvzL5qucYdH
https://munisapp.indianwells.com/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=cszzJV7lLyHIGJKFEkjFTTO0uOeH8ybnRtbs9en50FvqgC9wRjSa6TVFw%2FLrfhh9
https://munisapp.indianwells.com/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=6NpAMIwA2hKzvAnOpBigPGQ24f1y0ke3p1FP5IkT93le%2B0oHcXG8mSo%2FvCg5Eo%2FW
https://munisapp.indianwells.com/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=Epz8gDen0StiFeK3iY8Ow4%2BfB9e5zfu20A%2FOMaiUjEhK7zRCkt%2BbXtHIPCipus6X
https://munisapp.indianwells.com/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=zg6aOG9O3v%2FKNXJFZadCVvB5xzKqO7ag6AGKAV4moW%2B1TAdFDsSBd4uHBlq7BFCj
https://munisapp.indianwells.com/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=XrN8YX%2FL5OcuMd10vzH0AkUeezbmuCMLMa1fQf6MzkysebYdMOf91BrOYwA4Crvd
https://munisapp.indianwells.com/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=Uh8OeTViiR3teileJziaLn8La%2F7FMtw4QatMmw4lNyAkFiHfv699Yh5cwodEzhPi
https://munisapp.indianwells.com/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=839t3jW89vZk4vJb5x2lACd3Da7oENkz7H648j7PgFrywT7bRn2IkHWEN9j050ya
https://munisapp.indianwells.com/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=6PjK9GWYFiQ1ZPK9T0wiN%2FAW4Y8ek0YO%2FbsyqRZTet9oP6XQBKolvRXtSF0YZ9ze
https://munisapp.indianwells.com/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=q3IGemQP7Gt4YGadLFVRxbNrxZmNWNfSO3HUFGXkcLZaxmfWX1S8ky6%2FLoHW%2FWuk
https://munisapp.indianwells.com/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=9rNtJq73olhQbyKuVWwwEUdt5JaHl6d5lDF44xP05alVKugyMTpcUK9Hs6q47SCD
https://munisapp.indianwells.com/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=Cq87mMLmoWNP%2Fo3gX55Dms0%2Ft5RGAcClm6i43DzgsvqVa6XoFyAvydr00jqTDZSK
https://munisapp.indianwells.com/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=fSvPtr03se13h5KKwAavqKKQ%2BujSAFMPUDADTFvtk67ga%2FWTJmdjHb6J%2BEPWH3Fc
https://munisapp.indianwells.com/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=85sKnCiC07mrBN75X7mbQ4hKMTXTtgBKFVS1OgEgRgyr5VCrzxU3FSfTY7%2BsrgTn
https://munisapp.indianwells.com/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=4FksUKL%2BnzSzuYqi3MIr%2Fclsawt%2FI6LwTdGXTJNSLVkIXu%2BAudV%2B1up4maK5wZyT
https://munisapp.indianwells.com/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=Cym%2FO72MtFN%2BB%2Bi6pBTNr8LgT5%2F%2B9btGyWff0fLQhpB2cb4nAOksPLwU99lpra1D
https://munisapp.indianwells.com/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=scoeUCT8g%2BBKNJht4qKU9si7daQuPJsjBTCHq%2BUAirN4ddFtwxy2V%2Bkp8Asrz21f
https://munisapp.indianwells.com/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=TjGEcLXJsEa7sr8K1z4KNzdi%2F9c1J3LlNQ6LkePDniRSFqEIcFRWmwtaOZQ3J8SA
https://munisapp.indianwells.com/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=PeSCSAD%2FsqDzDcfgmDqqYkCR%2BgE6c7NZpjBeJvst0FT77X9a%2B13%2Fh3da3J2rLBCQ
https://munisapp.indianwells.com/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=JAQSWN5%2FGVq329OTKC7YrxtYVH740jc6Q9PIhgzBhh0MqvNfVei3TMEnduu2V5Dk
https://munisapp.indianwells.com/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=eAahD20dIIK2nMoF7rHdZNVP9FeINV%2BjrJ%2BAcioNHoz2HNwpBxKeOx9xvAhTUAQz










 

 

STAFF    REPORT        

DATE:  January 11, 2024 

TO:  Honorable FAMD Board Members 

FROM: FAMD District Manager 

 
SUBJECT:  Street Safety  

 

SUMMARY:  

On December 14, 2023, the Board of Directors discussed adding flashing street signs to help promote 

intersection safety. The discussion led to directing the District Manager to bring back a plan to identify 

intersections of concern and traffic calming options. A map is attached with curtain intersections 

identified as high, medium, and low priority concerns. These intersections were determined from visual 

observation, consulting with security and board members with a goal to slow vehicle traffic and golf cart 

traffic for safety.  

High Priority Intersections: Estimated Cost $25,000.00 

1. Add flashing street signs (stop and stop ahead) 

2. Add/ rehab reflective painted street stenciling stop and stop ahead.  

3. Add speed humps and/or Bot Dots or reflective pavement markers. 

4. Enhance the street with ladder crosswalks. 

5. Add golf cart/ bicyclist street painted stencils. 

 

Medium Priority Intersections: Estimated Cost $10,000.00 

1. Identify curtain intersections that will need 2-way stop signs. 

2. Add Botts Dots or reflective pavement markers. 

3. Enhance the street with stop bar stenciling. 

 

Low Priority Intersections: Estimated Cost $5,000.00 

1. Identify curtain intersections that will need 2-way stop signs. 

2. Add Botts Dots 

3. Enhance the street with stop bar stenciling. 

 

 



 

 

 
 Bot Dots 

 

   
 Speed Humps 

 

   
 Street Reflectors 

 

  
Golf Cart & bicyclist street stenciling 

 

 



 

 

  

 

 

Crosswalks 

  

Flashing Street Signs 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:  

 TBD 

  



 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

• The Board of Direction should discission whether to move forward with an RFP to enhance 

intersection safety.  



 H
ig

h
 P

r
io

ri
ty

 

 M
e

d
iu

m
 P

ri
o

r
it

y
 

  L
o
w

 P
ri

o
ri

ty
  



STAFF    REPORT

DATE: December 14, 2023

TO: Honorable FAMD Board Members

FROM: Kevin McCarthy, City Finance Director

SUBJECT: Ballot Measure Consideration

SUMMARY:

Since 2020, the Fire Access Maintenance District (FAMD) has allocated approximately
$2,100,000, representing about 71% of its cash reserves, towards capital reinvestments within the
District. Projections suggest that the FAMD may fall short of meeting the minimum cash-holding
requirements stipulated by the City by the conclusion of the fiscal year 2023-24.

The foremost challenge that the FAMD is currently facing is related to the fixed voter-approved
assessment, which has remained unchanged for the past 18 years despite any fluctuations in the
Consumer Price Index (CPI). Since April 2005, the FAMD has maintained the same assessment
of $1,200,000 for the past eighteen years, as mandated by the voters. This fixed assessment
constitutes the principal funding source and accounts for a significant proportion of the total
FAMD revenues, amounting to nearly 76%.

While the fixed voter-approved assessment has proven effective during low inflation periods and
minimal capital investment, recent developments, such as the need for community reinvestment
in roadway and drainage projects and inflationary pressures on operating costs, necessitate
reassessing this fixed amount.

Considering ongoing inflationary concerns, rising operational costs, and the Community’s need
for infrastructure improvements, the FAMD Board should carefully evaluate potential
adjustments to ensure the organization's financial sustainability.

BACKGROUND:

Indian Wells Fire Access Maintenance District No. 1 (FAMD) maintains and operates access
roadways, rights of way, and easements dedicated to fire protection. Established exclusively for
the benefit of residents residing within the confines of the Indian Wells Country Club gates, the
FAMD was instituted following a 1973 proposal to privatize public streets within the Indian Wells
Country Club area.



Upon consideration of this proposal, the City Council endorsed the transition of public streets to
private status by abandoning them and placing them under the jurisdiction of a Maintenance
District. This formation granted the City Council the prerogative to levy a property tax to fund the
district's operations.

The primary scope of the Indian Wells Fire Access Maintenance District No. 1 entails the continual
maintenance and operation of access roadways, rights of way, and easements, crucial for effective
fire protection. Maintenance activities encompass grading, paving, planking, macadamizing,
graveling, oiling, or re-oiling pertinent structures, barriers, gates, or other facilities designed to
regulate fire access usage.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Funding Sources and Expenditures

The FAMD sustains itself through two principal revenue streams: property taxes amounting to
approximately $365,000 and a voter-endorsed special assessment yielding around $1,200,000.
These revenues collectively contribute 98% of the essential funding for District operations and
maintenance.

Notably, the special assessment is exempt from Consumer Price Index (CPI) adjustments and
necessitates voter approval for any increase.  Both property taxes and the voter-approved
assessment are collected biannually by the County of Riverside, with approximately half remitted
to the City in January and the remainder in June.

Given the semi-annual disbursement structure, the City mandates that the FAMD uphold a cash
balance equivalent to at least 50% of the forthcoming fiscal year's budget at the fiscal year's
commencement. This precaution prevents the complete depletion of cash reserves while awaiting
the subsequent semi-annual payment. However, projections indicate potential challenges for the
FAMD in meeting this requirement at the commencement of the fiscal year 2024-25.

Expenditures for the FAMD are categorized into operational costs and capital replacements.
Operational costs encompass professional services, utility expenses, street sweeping, and minor
repairs, with a substantial portion allocated to security services at the entrance gates and patrol.
Capital replacements, generally project-based, cover street paving, slurry sealing, lane stripping,
drainage improvements, and entrance gate enhancements.

Cash Flow and Capital Improvement Cycles

To aid FAMD Board Members, the staff has formulated a comprehensive cash flow analysis,
encompassing four years of actuals, two years of budgets, and five years of forecasted
expectations.

Over the past four fiscal years, the FAMD Board directed approximately $2,800,000 towards
capital repairs and replacements, resulting in a deficit spending of approximately $2,100,000



through fiscal year 2023-24. While deficit spending during substantial capital improvement cycles
is not uncommon, the Board should thoroughly deliberate on this aspect during the budget
development and approval cycle.

RECOMMENDATIONS:

Strategic Initiatives for a Ballot Measure

The FAMD Board can consider an informal needs assessment as part of the ballot measure process.
A needs assessment is critical for systematically identifying gaps between current conditions and
desired outcomes. Through this process, the FAMD Board will comprehensively understand
potential service deficiencies. It answers the question: “Why do we need to conduct a ballot
measure?”

This informed approach enables efficient resource allocation and strategic decision-making. It
fosters stakeholder engagement, enhances accountability, and prevents resource wastage by
tailoring interventions to address specific needs. In summary, a needs assessment is valuable for
communities to understand, prioritize, and address challenges or opportunities.

The City and the FAMD’s Role in the Ballot Measure

Ballot measures allow for direct citizen participation in decision-making, promoting the principles
of democracy. This direct engagement can enhance public trust and satisfaction with the political
process. The ballot measure can be further broken down into the City’s role and the role of the
FAMD.

City's Role:

· Request for Proposal (RFP): Initiate the process by updating and releasing a
comprehensive RFP to solicit proposals from qualified firms with expertise in ballot
measures.

· Firm Selection: Employ a rigorous evaluation process to identify and engage the most
qualified firm, ensuring their proficiency aligns seamlessly with the FAMD's November
2024 Ballot Measure objectives.

· Oversight and Responsibility: Assume a proactive role in overseeing the selected firm
throughout the ballot measure process, affirming accountability for the successful levy
update upon approval.

· Timeline Establishment: Develop a viable November 2024 Ballot Measure timeline.



· Staff Reports and Approvals: Facilitate the creation of FAMD and City Staff Reports to
endorse selecting the best-qualified firm and obtain the requisite approvals for the ballot
measure.

· Recommendation for Fiscal Year 2025-26 Levy Roll: Propose the initiation of the first
new levy in the fiscal year 2025-26 roll, strategically aligning with the financial objectives
of the FAMD.

FAMD's Active Involvement and Decision-Making:

· Board Approval: Seek formal approval from the FAMD Board to proceed with the RFP
process and subsequent firm selection, ensuring alignment with the overall strategic vision.

· Rationale and Implementation: Articulate a clear and compelling justification for the
necessity of the levy modification, elucidating the implementation strategy and its impact
on the district.

· Levy Adjustment Analysis: Undertake a thorough analysis of current costs, inflationary
factors, and projected capital spending to determine the appropriate levy adjustment.
Establish a decision-making process, considering potential political considerations that
may necessitate a deviation from the calculated adjustment.

· CPI Levy Modification Inclusion: Deliberate on including an annual Consumer Price
Index (CPI) levy modification, recommended to keep the levy concurrent with operational
increases.

· Education Campaign: Spearhead directly or indirectly a robust education campaign
elucidating the significance of the proposed measure and its positive impact on the
residents residing within the district. Recognizing the pivotal role of strategic
communication, a well-executed campaign is imperative to enhance the likelihood of voter
approval.

ATTACHMENTS:

FAMD Cash Flow



Ci
ty

 o
f I

nd
ia

n 
W

el
ls

 
FA

M
D 

Ca
sh

 F
lo

w
s 

 2
02

0A
 2

02
1A

 2
02

2A
20

23
A

20
24

B
 2

02
5B

 2
02

6F
 2

02
7F

 2
02

8F
 2

03
9F

 2
03

0F
Be

gi
nn

in
g 

Ba
la

nc
e 

2,
54

8,
01

7
2,

94
6,

75
9

2,
63

5,
56

2
2,

15
1,

07
8

1,
71

3,
51

3
84

4,
30

9
(6

1,
76

1)
(1

15
,2

65
)

(2
09

,4
69

)
(3

46
,6

17
)

(5
29

,0
47

)

Re
ve

nu
es

 
01

-P
RO

PE
RT

Y 
TA

XE
S

35
9,

49
2

28
6,

27
5

35
1,

97
8

38
5,

77
8

33
7,

07
0

34
5,

50
0

35
4,

13
8

36
2,

99
1

37
2,

06
6

38
1,

36
7

39
0,

90
2

03
-A

SS
ES

SM
EN

TS
 

1,
20

2,
29

2
1,

17
6,

43
0

1,
19

1,
00

0
1,

20
2,

03
9

1,
19

4,
00

0
1,

19
5,

00
0

1,
20

0,
00

0
1,

20
0,

00
0

1,
20

0,
00

0
1,

20
0,

00
0

1,
20

0,
00

0
12

-L
IC

EN
SE

 &
 P

ER
M

IT
 F

EE
S

1,
11

0
28

5
57

0
0

1,
08

0
1,

11
0

1,
13

8
1,

16
6

1,
19

5
1,

22
5

1,
25

6
13

-O
TH

ER
 R

EV
EN

U
ES

3,
10

6
2,

54
0

2,
12

0
2,

96
3

3,
45

0
3,

54
0

3,
62

9
3,

71
9

3,
81

2
3,

90
7

4,
00

5
16

-IN
TE

RE
ST

 IN
CO

M
E

89
,6

68
5,

23
9

(9
9,

25
8)

80
6

48
,0

00
49

,2
00

(1
,5

44
)

(2
,8

82
)

(5
,2

37
)

(8
,6

65
)

(1
3,

22
6)

19
-IN

TE
RG

O
VE

RN
M

EN
TA

L
1,

56
6

1,
80

1
1,

76
5

1,
65

5
1,

83
0

1,
88

0
1,

92
7

1,
97

5
2,

02
5

2,
07

5
2,

12
7

TO
TA

L 
- R

EV
EN

U
ES

1,
65

7,
23

4
1,

47
2,

57
0

1,
44

8,
17

5
1,

59
3,

24
1

1,
58

5,
43

0
1,

59
6,

23
0

1,
55

9,
28

7
1,

56
6,

97
0

1,
57

3,
86

1
1,

57
9,

91
0

1,
58

5,
06

3

Ex
pe

ns
es

 
PU

BL
IC

 S
AF

TE
Y

1,
21

9,
18

5
1,

20
7,

19
2

1,
29

8,
98

9
1,

34
1,

68
9

1,
51

3,
35

0
1,

56
5,

81
6

1,
61

2,
79

0
1,

66
1,

17
4

1,
71

1,
00

9
1,

76
2,

34
0

1,
81

5,
21

0
CA

PI
TA

L 
O

U
TL

AY
39

,3
07

57
6,

57
5

63
3,

67
0

68
9,

11
7

94
1,

28
4

93
6,

48
4

TO
TA

L 
- E

XP
EN

DI
TU

RE
S

1,
25

8,
49

2
1,

78
3,

76
7

1,
93

2,
65

9
2,

03
0,

80
6

2,
45

4,
63

4
2,

50
2,

30
0

1,
61

2,
79

0
1,

66
1,

17
4

1,
71

1,
00

9
1,

76
2,

34
0

1,
81

5,
21

0

TO
TA

L 
SU

RP
LU

S/
(G

AP
)

39
8,

74
2

(3
11

,1
97

)
(4

84
,4

84
)

(4
37

,5
65

)
(8

69
,2

04
)

(9
06

,0
70

)
(5

3,
50

4)
(9

4,
20

4)
(1

37
,1

48
)

(1
82

,4
30

)
(2

30
,1

46
)

En
di

ng
 B

al
an

ce
 

2,
94

6,
75

9
2,

63
5,

56
2

2,
15

1,
07

8
1,

71
3,

51
3

84
4,

30
9

(6
1,

76
1)

(1
15

,2
65

)
(2

09
,4

69
)

(3
46

,6
17

)
(5

29
,0

47
)

(7
59

,1
94

)

M
in

im
um

 C
as

h 
Ba

la
nc

e 
Pe

r C
ity

62
9,

24
6

89
1,

88
4

96
6,

33
0

1,
01

5,
40

3
1,

22
7,

31
7

1,
25

1,
15

0
80

6,
39

5
83

0,
58

7
85

5,
50

5
88

1,
17

0
90

7,
60

5
O

ve
ra

ge
/(

De
fic

it)
 

2,
31

7,
51

3
1,

74
3,

67
9

1,
18

4,
74

9
69

8,
11

0
(3

83
,0

08
)

(1
,3

12
,9

11
)

(9
21

,6
60

)
(1

,0
40

,0
56

)
(1

,2
02

,1
22

)
(1

,4
10

,2
17

)
(1

,6
66

,7
99

)



 

 

STAFF    REPORT        

DATE:  January 11, 2024 

TO:  Honorable FAMD Board Members 

FROM: FAMD District Manager 

 
SUBJECT:  Priority 4 Street Rehabilitation Project 

 

SUMMARY:  

Priority 4 will be the next phase of road rehabilitation outlined in the pavement management plan. The 

project is estimated to cost $880,000.00. Due to the current financial status of the FAMD the Board of 

Directors will need to decide to postpone the rehabilitation due to lack of reserves or scale the project 

down.   

FISCAL IMPACT:  

 TBD 

  

RECOMMENDATIONS 

• Postpone the Priority 4 Road Rehabilitation Project until 2026. 

 

 



 

 

 









































 

 

STAFF    REPORT        

DATE:  January 11, 2024 

TO:  Honorable FAMD Board Members 

FROM: FAMD District Manager 

 
SUBJECT:  Manitou Guard House Remodel   

 

SUMMARY:  

The Manitou guardhouse is in need of a remodel.  The initial project was placed on hold and to be 

reevaluated after the first of the year.  A basic remodel for the guardhouse is estimated at under 

$100,000.00 and would include new flooring, painting, new cabinets, and desk space.  This would not 

change the footprint but reorganize the space to be more useable.   

FISCAL IMPACT:  

 TBD 

  

RECOMMENDATIONS 

• Direct the District Manager to send out an RFP for future consideration.   

 

 

 


	GF Forecast

